

Hartford Community Restorative Justice Center
58 North Main Street
White River Junction VT 05001
802-291-7173

www.hartfordjusticecenter.org

Adapted from Pima County Arizona

Resources for Successful Re-entry

A handbook to help you prepare for your re-entry into the community in and around Windsor County VT



Also available online at: www.hartfordjusticecenter.org



FINAL WORDS OF ENCOURAGEMENT

We all have an inner strength. That strength may be a strong faith in yourself or in a higher power. It could be a strength seldom used, cultivated, or nurtured. You may not have defined it in terms of a value or belief system. It may have failed you in the past, but understand that you have paid your debt to society, and your exit from prison or jail ends a chapter in your life. Now it is up to you how your future will be framed and how you will grow and advance. You need to forgive yourself and also forgive others.

You are not the first to have made a mistake and you won't be the last, but let this be a new chapter in your life. Just remember, the streets still remain the streets and if you seek trouble it will find you. Avoid those old haunts and those old "friends" who are not healthy for you. Break clean from that old environment and those people. This could even include family members if they are using drugs or if they are involved in illegal activity. As painful as it may be, you must take care of yourself and surround yourself with people who will affirm your new lifestyle and support you in making positive changes.

Anticipate problems so they don't overwhelm you. Be patient and take things one step at a time. Prioritize the things that really need to happen (getting a job) and let the rest come when you are ready (like finding a new girlfriend or boyfriend). Seek advice and assistance from peers and mentors who seem to be doing it right. Be your own best advocate, because when all is said and done, you alone are responsible for yourself. Let your release be the start of something new.

Accept the Challenge.

You must apply **in person** at a <u>Vermont DMV office</u>. You will need:

- 1. A completed application for Vermont Non-Driver ID (Form TA-VL-17)
- 2. A document proving your **identity and age**, such as your:
 - o U.S. passport.
 - Birth certificate.
- 3. Proof of your **Social Security number**

(SSN), such as your:

- o Social Security card.
- o Pay stub.
- Letter of eligibility from the Social Security Administration.
- 4. 2 documents proving your **Vermont residency**, such as your:
 - Utility bills.
 - o Lease agreement.
 - o Renters insurance.
- 5. Proof of your **name change** (if applicable), such as your:
 - Marriage certificate.
 - o Divorce decree.
 - Court order.
- 6. To pay the **fee**. Fee information provided below.

Standard ID card: \$24.

Those receiving Supplemental Security Income (SSI)/Social Security Disability (SSD): \$10.

Enhanced ID card (EID): \$30 in addition to standard ID card fee.

 $\textbf{Duplicate ID card} \ (including \ EID): \$20. \ SSI/SSD \ individuals: \$10.$

The Vermont DMV accepts payment by:

- o Cash.
- o Personal or business check.
- o Money order.
- o Travelers check.

Driver License Re-instatement

To reinstate your driver's license, you may need to:

- o Submit an SR22/proof of car insurance to the VT DMV, if necessary.
- o Retake and pass the driving skills and knowledge tests.
- o Satisfy any court requirements, if applicable.
- o Pay a \$80 reinstatement fee.
- o Make sure your Probation Officer is on board with your driving while under supervision.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Rebuilding Your Life	1
Tips on Getting Started	2
Probation and Parole/Courts	3
Economic Services/Legal Services	4
Health Services	5
Veterans Services	6
Dental Services.	6
Family Matters	7-8
Counseling and Support Services	8-9
Substance Abuse Support Groups	9-13
Housing	14
Transportation	15
Clothing	15
Food Services	16
Churches/Synagogues/Meetings	17
Employment Services and Tips for Finding	
Employment	18-21
Identification and License information	22-23
Final Words of Encouragement	24



REBUILDING YOUR LIFE

The transition to life in the community is a big challenge, and this brochure is designed to help you through this exciting but often difficult time. Please consider the following as you navigate this process:

Do your homework. Make as many arrangements for yourself as you can before you get out. Use this brochure to write to agencies for help.

Give yourself time to adjust. Don't try to accomplish everything right away. Take time alone or with supportive family and friends only. Be patient with yourself and know it might take you a while to reach your goals. You may feel depressed or overwhelmed. This is normal - just take some time to heal.

Ask for help. There is an answer to every question you have. All you need to do is ask. This does not make you weak, it makes you smart. Call the agencies in this pamphlet. If they can't help you, ask them who can. Keep asking until you get the right answer.

Take care of yourself and surround yourself with people who will affirm your new lifestyle and support you in making positive changes. Stay away from the "old neighborhood." Avoid people and places that are associated with your old behaviors. This may even include family members who are still using drugs or are involved in illegal activity, as hard as it may be.

DON'T GIVE UP!



IDENTIFICATION and LICENSE Information

Social Security Card Replacement

You can find an application for a replacement social security card at https://www.ssa.gov/forms/ss-5fs.pdf
33 School Street, Montpelier, VT 05602 (closest)

Phone: 877-505-4542

Vermont Motor Vehicle Department Services

As long as you're a Vermont resident, you will be eligible for a Non-Driver ID card at Vermont Motor Vehicle Department.

http://dmv.vermont.gov/

Montpelier Office

120 State Street

Montpelier, VT 05602

Phone: 802-828-2000

Hours: M-F 7:45am to 4:30pm

White River Junction Office

226 Holiday Drive

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-828-2050

Check https://dmv.vermont.gov/locations/white-river-junction-branch-office for days and times

office for days and times.

TAX BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYERS WHO HIRE EX-FELONS

You may be able to encourage someone to hire you by telling him or her of the tax benefits available to employers who hire ex-felons who are veterans, disabled, receiving food stamps, or who have been unemployed for at least 4 weeks.

The work opportunity tax credit (WOTC) offers tax savings to businesses that hire employees belonging to various targeted groups. These groups include people ages 18 to 39 living in designated communities in 43 states and the District of Columbia, recipients of various types of public assistance, certain veterans, ex-felons and certain youth workers.

The instructions for Form 8850 detail the requirements for each of these groups. Certification by the state workforce agency is generally required. Normally, a business must file Form 8850 with the state workforce agency within 28 days after the eligible worker begins work. An eligible employer can claim both the WOTC and the new hire retention credit for the same employee. However, an employer may not claim both the payroll tax exemption and the WOTC for the same employee. Therefore, any employer that chooses to apply the exemption to wages paid to a qualified employee may not receive the WOTC on any wages paid to that employee during the one-year period beginning on the employee's hiring date.

SOME TIPS ON GETTING STARTED

This pamphlet is intended to help you begin the process of re-entering the community. It outlines steps you can take before your release as well as some positive steps you can take after release.

Information included in this pamphlet will guide you to find help with transportation, employment assistance, job search tactics, health care, individual and family support, and other special programs.

While we have worked hard to ensure that the information in this booklet is up to date, some organizations may have moved, changed phone numbers, or ceased to exist by the time you contact them. Try not to be discouraged — call the next number and ask them for more information.

When you are released, remember to make immediate contact with the probation and parole office and follow all parole conditions completely. They will also have information for you.

Make lists of goals/tasks/to-do. Break problems into small manageable tasks. Write questions for you PPO and others down when you think of them, so you remember to ask when you meet with your PPO.

Today a lot of information is available online. If you don't have access to a computer, contact your local library for information about free computer use and access to the Internet. HCRJC also has computers for public use.



PROBATION AND PAROLE

Hartford Probation and Parole

118 Prospect Street, Suite 200 White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-8810 Fax: 802-295-8816

Springfield Probation and Parole

100 Mineral Street, Suite 102 Springfield, VT 05156 **Phone:** 802-289-0329

Fax: 802-885-8800

US Probation & Parole Office

151 West Street, Rutland, VT 05701 **Phone:** 802-773-0263

COURTS

Windsor County District Court

82 Railroad Row, White River Junction, VT 05001 **Phone:** 802-295-8865

Orange County District Court

5 Court Street, Chelsea, VT 05038 **Phone:** 802-685-4610

Center for Crime Victim Services - Restitution Unit

58 South Main Street, Suite 1 Waterbury, VT 05676

Phone: 1-800-584-3485 / 802-241-4688

Some examples:

- ~Job related skills or job training before, during, or after your incarceration including facility jobs and work crew.
- ~Any positive work evaluations, duties assigned that involved responsibility, training you conducted, or supervisory activities you carried out.
- ~Any educational activities completed such as, GED, college credits, and vocational training.
- ~Any other rehabilitation (life skill classes, personal development classes, religious activities, NA/AA, drug counseling only if related to your conviction). Here are some examples you could use when answering the felony conviction question:
 - o Since then I have completed _____ (certificate, sobriety programs, job assignments, volunteer work).
 - o I have been sober for over _____.
 - o I am committed to living an honest life.
 - o I am not proud of the choice I made during that time in my life but since then, I have
 - o I put it behind me and redirected my life.
 - $\circ\;\;$ My goal is to help others avoid the mistake I made.
 - Since then, I have reunited with my family and want to be a better parent.
 - I now make healthy choices and have healthy relationships.
 Note:

Avoid using words like "aggravated" or "dangerous." These words are interpreted as violent and may be taken out of context.

The only letters that should accompany an application is a cover letter (if the position requires one), letters of recommendation, and reference letters. Do not write a letter explaining your felony conviction(s).

AVOID

- o Rushing through the application.
- o Sloppy penmanship.
- o Employment gaps-blanks from when you were in prison.
- Appearing desperate; for example, "Position Desired: *Anything*."
- o Brief descriptions of your job duties.
- Leaving blanks on the application.

INSTEAD

- o Read the application completely before starting.
- o Take time to print neatly and clearly.
- O Show the work experience while you were incarcerated.
- Use a specific job goal, for example: "Position Desired: A full time position where I can offer my skills in adapting and repairing tools, machinery, and equipment."
- o Be descriptive when writing about your job duties and skills.
- o Wages earned while incarcerated always write minimum.
- Under desired salary always put open or negotiable, never write a dollar amount.
- Make sure you have correct phone numbers of previous employers and references.
- O Complete all spaces on the application where information is requested, including NA if it is not applicable.

PREPARE TO DISCUSS YOUR BACKGROUND

It is always necessary to be honest about your conviction(s) when completing employment applications. For example, if your age and lifestyle were factors in the crime, you may choose to discuss this with honesty either on your application or during your interview. If your life is different now, explain the positive changes.

Make sure you mention all the job-related activities while incarcerated and any activities you feel could make a good impression with employers. Remember these examples should be tailored to you and your circumstances.

Economic Services Division

(EBT Card, 3SquaresVT, Energy Assistance, Post-secondary Education, Reach Ahead, Reach Up, Health Connect) 118 Prospect Street,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 800-479-6151

https://dcf.vermont.gov/mybenefits

LEGAL SERVICES

Vermont Legal Aid

Springfield Office (closest) 56 Main Street, Suite 301 Springfield, VT 05156

Phone: 802-885-5181 Fax: 802-885-5754 www.vtlegalaid.org

Have Justice-Will Travel, Inc.

(Provides legal and supportive services for battered, low-income women and their children)

9476 Vermont Route 113,

Vershire, VT 05079

Toll Free: 877-496-8100 Business: 802-685-7809 Fax: 802-685-4663

www.havejusticewilltravel.org

South Royalton Legal Clinic

Vermont Law School 190 Chelsea Street,

South Royalton, VT 05068

Mailing Address: PO Box 117 South Royalton, VT 05068

Phone: 802-831-1500

 $\underline{www.vermontlaw.edu/academics/clinics-and-externships/south-}$

royalton-legal-clinic



HEALTH SERVICES

Health Insurance

Economic Services: 800-479-6151

http://info.healthconnect.vermont.gov/Get Started

Clinics/Doctors

Good Neighbor Health Clinic

(Helps people with no insurance; HIV/HCV Resource Center;

free Narcan doses)
70 North Main Street.

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-1868

https://goodneighborhealthclinic.org/

Twin River Health Center

(Accepts Medicaid)

108 North Main Street,

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-296-7370

https://giffordhealthcare.org/location/twin-river-health-center/

White River Family Practice

331 Olcott Drive #U3

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-6132

www.whiteriverfamilypractice.com

Planned Parenthood, WRJ Health Center

79 South Main Street.

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-281-6056

www.plannedparenthood.org

White River Family Eye Care

587 Hartford Avenue.

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-4887



EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

Vermont Department of Labor

118 Prospect Street, Suite 300, White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-8805

Vocational Rehabilitation (VocRehab)

118 Prospect Street, Suite 201, White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-8850

TIPS FOR FINDING A JOB

Take time to prepare a resume. You can get help with this at VocRehab, Department of Labor, and Hartford Restorative Justice Center.

THE APPLICATION FORM

The application form is the most important part of the process. It is how you make your first impression with an employer. Save time by completing one generic application and take that application with you to use as a guide to fill out each new application. If the application asks if you have been convicted of a felony/misdemeanor, answer *yes*. It is no longer advised to write "will explain during interview."

Employers recommend and often require answering the felony question with facts about your conviction. Please note if the felony question asks "Have you ever been convicted of a felony/misdemeanor," they want ALL of them disclosed. If the question asks "Have you been convicted of a felony within the last 7 years," and your conviction was 8 years ago, the answer would be NO.

5 18

Churches/Synagogues/Meetings

St. Anthony's Catholic Church

41 Church Street, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-2225

Riverbank Church

259 Holiday Drive, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 603-359-6063

Valley Bible Church

851 Fairview Terrace, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-5000

St. Paul's Episcopal Church

749 Hartford Avenue, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-5415

White River Jct. United Methodist Church

106 Gates Street,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-7091

Woodstock Area Jewish Community

1680 West Woodstock Road, Woodstock, VT 05091

Phone: 802-457-4840

VETERANS SERVICES

VA Medical Center

163 Veterans Drive,

White River Junction VT 05009

Phone: 802-295-9363

877-222-8387 (For questions concerning health benefits)

US Department of Veterans Affairs

White River Junction Regional Benefit Office

163 Veterans Drive, Building 28, White River Junction, VT 05009

Phone: 802-827-1000

Veterans Crisis Line: 800-273-8255 (press 1)

VA Justice Outreach

Mike Owens 866-687-8387 x5681

DENTAL SERVICES

Red Logan Dental Clinic

(Free for low income adults without insurance) 70 North Main Street.

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-7573

White River Smiles

144 Palmer Court, Suite 1A, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-649-7293

Mark Young, DDS

205 Billings Farm Road #1A, White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-5611

Drs. Klampert, Schramm, and Symancyk

1049 North Hartland Road, White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-2458



Family Matters

The transition back home can be almost as disruptive for the family as when the person first gets incarcerated. Many adjustments have been made in that person's absence, and families need to learn how to be a family again. Children will have many questions about how things will be different, and it is important for the whole family to discuss what the new rules and routines will be. Each child reacts differently to having a parent return home, and some may still harbor anger or resentment. We strongly recommend family counseling to assist you in this transition. Many formerly incarcerated persons have questions about how to regain guardian status. In some cases, the person may have an active file at Dept. of Children and Families (DCF) that they need to clear up.

Vermont Department of Children and Families, Hartford District Office

118 Prospect Street, Suite 400, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-8840

Windsor County Family Court Family Division

82 Railroad Row,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-8865

WISE Domestic & Sexual Violence Program/Office

38 Bank Street, Lebanon, NH 03766 **Phone:** 866-348-9473

www.wiseuv.org

Child and Family Services <u>Supervised Visitation</u> Center

3 Atwood Avenue, West Lebanon, NH **Phone:** 603-518-4235



FOOD SERVICES

Economic Services Division (EBT card)

118 Prospect Street, Suite 400 White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 800-479-6151 https://dcf.vermont.gov/esd

Upper Valley Haven – Food Shelf

713 Hartford Avenue, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-6500

Listen Community Center – Community Dinners

LISTEN's hearty three-course community dinners are served **free** of charge to the public at **5PM**, **Monday-Saturday**. Doors open at 4PM. 42 Maple Street.

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 603-448-4553

Listen Food Pantry and Program Offices

60 Hanover Street, Lebanon, NH 03766 **Phone:** 603-448-4553

Many towns have their own **Food Shelf. Check online or with the town office for information.

7 16



TRANSPORTATION

Bus: Advanced Transit

Call or check online for schedules and routes.

Phone: 802-295-1824 www.advancedtransit.com

Stagecoach: Transportation services for elderly, disabled, general public; Medicaid rides to appointments; serving 29 towns in Northern Windsor and Orange counties.

1 L Street,

Randolph, VT 05060 **Phone:** 802-728-3773 www.stagecoach-rides.org

TAXI:

Big Yellow Taxi - 603-643-8294 Twin State Taxi - 802-295-7878

CLOTHING

LISTEN Thrift Store

42 Maple Street,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-9217

SEVCA Good Buy Thrift Store

676 Hartford Avenue,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-359-4183

Second Hand Rose

106 Gates Street,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-7091

Second Growth

(Works with adolescents) 205 Billings Farm Road, Building 1 White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-9800

HCRS Children's Division

49 School Street, Hartford, VT 05047 **Phone:** 802-886-4500 http://www.hcrs.org/

COUNSELING/SUPPORT SERVICES

CRISIS PHONE #211

Clara Martin Center

39 Fogg Farm Road,
White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-1311

www.claramartin.org

Clara Martin Center

11 North Main Street, Randolph, VT 05060 **Phone:** 802-728-4466

HCRS (Health Care & Rehabilitation Services)

49 School Street, Hartford, VT 05047 **Phone:** 802-886-4500 http://www.hcrs.org/

Dr. Edward MacPhee, Psychiatrist

215 North Main Street, White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-9363

Susan McKenzie, Psychologist

72 South Main Street, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-5533

Second Wind Foundation – Turning Point

200 Olcott Drive,

White River Junction VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-5206

Bradford Psychiatrics Associates – Suboxone/Vivitrol Maintenance

220 Holiday Drive, Suite A. White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-281-6364

Habit OPCO

254 North Plainfield Road, #1

Phone: 603-298-2146



HOUSING

For Emergency Housing:

Upper Valley Haven

713 Hartford Avenue, White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-295-6500

For Transitional Housing:

Please take the time to write to each agency requesting information and an application to their transitional housing program.

Dismas House

1673 Maple Street,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-698-8661 Director, Renee DePalo

Hartford Community Restorative Justice Center (Reentry Program)

58 North Main Street,

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-291-7173

More Permanent Housing:

Vermont State Housing Authority (Section 8 Rental Assistance)

1 Prospect St #1,

Montpelier, VT 05602

Phone: 802-828-3295

Twin Pines Housing Trust (Subsidized and Affordable Housing)

226 Holiday Drive #20.

White River Junction, VT 05001

Phone: 802-291-7000

West Lebanon, NH 03784

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SUPPORT **GROUPS**

SUNDAY

9:00AM - RANDOLPH, VT 1st 164 Pages, Media Room, Gifford Hospital **OBHa**

9:30AM – LEBANON, NH Big Book Group, Alice Peck Day Hospital, Conf. Rm. A **OBHa**

9:45AM – HANOVER/LEBANON, NH Sunday Morning Reflections, Dartmouth Medical School, DHMC, Rm. 658W (check w/ Info Desk) **ODHa**

11:00AM – WILDER, VT Acceptance Group, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CBHa**

7:00PM – ENFIELD, NH Lutheran Church, Main St. (toward Shaker Bridge) **OSD**

7:00PM – ROCHESTER, VT Fellowship on the Hill, Federated Church of Rochester, 15 N. Main St. (across from the mini-mart, entrance on the left) **ODHa**

7:00PM- TUNBRIDGE, VT The World's Not Fair Group, Parish Brick house (across from White Church, As Bill Sees It) **OLD**

7:30PM – FAIRLEE, VT Fairlee Good Group, White Church, Town Common Rd., Off Rte. 5 **OD**

7:30PM- WHITE RIVER JCT, VT Twin State Group, Methodist Church, Gates St. **OSHa**

9

TYPES OF MEETINGS

- **O** This is an open meeting of Alcoholics Anonymous. All are welcome, especially newcomers. In keeping with our singleness of purpose and our Third Tradition which states that "the only requirement for membership is the desire to stop drinking," we ask that all who participate confine their discussion to their problems with alcohol.
- C This is a closed meeting of Alcoholics Anonymous. In support of A.A.'s singleness of purpose, attendance at closed meetings is limited to persons who have a desire to stop drinking. If you think you have a problem with alcohol, you are welcome to attend this meeting. We ask that when discussing our problems, we confine ourselves to those problems as they relate to alcoholism.
- S Speaker, D Discussion, St Step, Bb Big Book, L Literature, B Beginner, M Men, W Women, Ha Handicapped Accessible, * Alanon meeting same place, E Family members encouraged to attend

Note:

- o All meetings are Non-Smoking.
- o All meetings are <u>1 hour</u> unless noted.
- For AA Information or 12th Step Referral, please call 800-593-3330 in NH or 802-295-7611 in VT
- \circ For Al-Anon information, please call 877- 825-2666 in NH, 866-972-5266 in VT

NA MEETINGS

Bev's Place

691 Hartford Avenue, White River Junction, VT 05001-8036 Sunday 5:00PM - Open

MONDAY

9:00AM - WILDER, VT Morning Glory Group, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CLDHa**

12:00PM – HANOVER, NH Brown Bag Group, 1st floor classroom (basement), Church of Christ, 40 N. College St. (free parking at the church) **CSt**

12:00PM – WILDER, VT WR Noon Group Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CStHa**

5:30PM - LEBANON, NH Rule 62, Alice Peck Day Hospital, Conf. Rm. A **ODHa**

7:00PM - RANDOLPH, VT St. John's Church, Summer St. **OSD**

7:00PM - WOODSTOCK, VT Fellowship Group, Universalist Church, Rte. 4**OSD**

7:30PM - GRAFTON, NH Step Study Group, Millbrook Christian Fellowship, 201 Main Street, Rte. 4 **OstDHa**

8:00PM - HARTLAND 3 CORNERS, VT Unity Group, Community Brick Church **CD**

8:00PM - LYME CENTER, NH Lyme Juicer's Group, Lyme Center Baptist Church **ODE**

8:00PM - NORWICH, VT Monday Night Group, St. Barnabas Episcopal Church, Main St. **OSD**

TUESDAY

6:15AM - NEWBURY, VT Eye Opener Daily Reflections, Congregational Church Vestry **COHa**

12:00PM – WILDER, VT WR Noon Group, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CBHa**

12:00PM – WOODSTOCK, VT Tuesday Noon Group, St. James Church, Rte. 4 **OD**

5:30PM - WILDER, VT WR Men's Group, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CDMHa**

6:30PM - WHITE RIVER JCT, VT Twin State Group, Beginner's Meeting, Methodist Church, Gates St. **OSD**

7:00PM - HANOVER, NH 119 Silsby Hall, Dartmouth College **OD**

7:00PM - RANDOLPH, VT Randolph Group, United Church, Main St., Red Brick Church **OStHa**

7:00PM - S. ROYALTON, VT GNOTHI SAUTOM Group, Oaks Hall, VT law school (3rd floor) **OBD**

7:00PM - WINDSOR, VT 2nd Chance Group, Trinity Church, Main St. **OSt**

8:00PM - WINDSOR, VT 2nd Chance Group, Trinity Church, Main St.**OSt**

8:00PM - THETFORD, VT Thetford Hill Group, Thetford Hill Church, Rte. 113 **OD**

WEDNESDAY

6:30AM - HANOVER/LEBANON, NH Back On Track Meeting Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Conf. Rm. L2A (check w/ Info Desk) **ODHa**

12:00PM - BRADFORD, VT Wednesday Willingness Group, Congregational Church, Main St. **CSt**

12:00PM - WILDER, VT White River Noon Group, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **OLDHa**

6:30PM - LEBANON, NH Wed. Night Step Meeting, Lebanon Library (next to Post Office) **CStHa**

6:30PM - QUECHEE, VT Sisters not Saints Women's Literature Meeting, Quechee Library **OLDW**

7:00PM - NORWICH, VT Congregational Church (1½ hours) **OBSt Study Ha**

7:00PM - RANDOLPH, VT Randolph Group, United Church, Main St., Red Brick Church **CStHa**

7:00PM - WOODSTOCK, VT Wednesday Step Group, St. James Church, Rte. 4 **CSt**

8:00PM - WILDER, VT Getting over the Rainbow, Turning Point Library, 200 Olcott Dr. **ODHa LGBTQ**

THURSDAY

6:00AM - NEWBURY, VT Eye Opener Daily Reflections, Congregational Church Vestry **COHa**

9:00AM - WILDER, VT Morning Glory Group, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CLDHa**

11:00AM - CANAAN, NH Canaan Thursday Morning Group, United Methodist Church, Main St./Rte. 4 **Ost**

12:00PM - NORWICH, VT Noon Group, Congregational Church **CSDHa**

6:00PM - WHITE RIVER JCT., VT Open Speaker Discussion VA Group, VA Hospital, Yazinsky Research Blg. Rm. 103A **OSDHa**

6:00PM - WILDER, VT We Agnostics and Freethinkers, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **CLDHa** flyer

6:30PM - HAN./LEB. NH Beginner's Meeting, Dart. Hitch. Medical Center, (check room w/ Info Desk) **ODHa**

7:00PM - RANDOLPH, VT Wild Women North Group, St. John's Episcopal Church, 15 Summer St. **CLDWHa**

7:00PM - SHARON, VT Walk the Walk Group, Congregational Church **CBbHa**

7:00PM - WINDSOR, VT Thursday Night Fellowship Group, Mt. Ascutney Hospital Board Rm., County Rd. **ODHa**

8:00PM - BRADFORD, VT Bradford Group, Bradford Senior Center, Rte. 25 **OSDHa**

8:00PM - HANOVER, NH Living Sober Group, St. Thomas Church, West Wheelock St. **CDHa**

12:00AM - WILDER, VT Midnight Literature Meeting, Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **OLD**

FRIDAY

12:00PM - WILDER, VT 3 & 11, WR Noon Group Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **OSD**

5:30PM - HANOVER, NH New Beginnings, St. Denis Catholic Church, 8 Sanborn Rd., (side entrance) **OD**

7:00PM - ENFIELD, NH Friday Night Group, Lutheran Church, Main St. (toward Shaker Bridge) **OD**

7:00PM - WINDSOR, VT Green Mt. Group, Windsor Correctional Facility, County Rd. **CSDHa**

7:00PM - WOODSTOCK, VT Beginners' Group, Our Lady of the Snows Church **OD**

7:30PM - THETFORD, VT Congregational Church, Rt. 113 (1½ hours) **OBSt Study**

8:00PM - PLAINFIELD, NH Plainfield Group, Baptist Community Church (1½ hours) **OD**

8:00PM - SOUTH ROYALTON, VT TGIF Group, United Church of Christ, (on the Green) **OSDHa**

8:00PM - WILDER, VT Beginners Mtg., Free & Sober Grp., Turning Point, 200 Olcott Dr. **OSDHa**

SATURDAY

8:00AM - WELLS RIVER, VT, Saturday Morning Breakfast Meeting, Daily Reflections, P&H Truck Stop **O**

8:15AM - TAFTSVILLE, VT Men's Morning Meeting, Mennonite Church, Off Rte. 4 **CDM**

9:00AM - NORWICH, VT Women's New Life Group, Congregational Church, Rte. 5 (1½ hours) **CSDHa**

9:45AM - HAN./LEB., NH Back to Basics, Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Cafeteria B (check w/ Info Desk) **ODHa**

11:00AM - CANAAN, NH Saturday Step Meeting, United Methodist Church, Main St./Rte. 4 **CStSB**

12:00PM - WHITE RIVER JCT., VT High Nooners Group,

Haven Cafeteria. Rte. 5 N **OLD**

6:30PM - RANDOLPH, VT Bethany Church, Main St., Across from Chandler **OD**

6:30PM - LEBANON, NH Saturday Night Live Group,

Alice Peck Day Hospital, Conf. Rm. A (use side service entrance) **OSDHa**

8:00PM - WINDSOR, VT Windsor Fellowship Group, Mt. Ascutney Hospital Board Room, County Rd. **OSDHa**